
     TOWN OF JEROME 
 

																														POST	OFFICE	BOX	335,	JEROME,	ARIZONA	86331	
									(928)	634-7943								FAX	(928)	634-0715	

		Founded	1876	 	
																											Incorporated	1899	

Jerome Town Hall Located at 600 Clark Street, Jerome Civic Center 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JEROME TOWN COUNCIL 

JEROME CIVIC CENTER - 600 CLARK STREET - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 13, 2019, AT 7:00 P.M. 

Due to the length of this meeting, Council may recess and reconvene at the time and date announced. 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02 notice is hereby given to the members of the Council and to the General Public that the Jerome Town Council plans to hold the above meeting. 
Persons with a disability may request an accommodation such as a sign language interpreter by contacting Joni Savage, Deputy Clerk, at 928-634-7943. Requests should be 
made early enough to allow time to arrange the accommodation.  

For TYY access, call the Arizona Relay Service at 800-367-8939 and ask for the Town of Jerome at 928-634-7943.  

A copy of the full public meeting packet may be reviewed at the offices of Jerome Town Hall during normal business hours, and on the Town’s website at www.jerome.az.gov.  

ITEM #1: CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor/Chairperson to call meeting to order. 
Town Clerk to call and record the roll.  
Mayor or Mayor’s designee to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM #2: FINANCIAL REPORTS 
Budget to Actual reports, vendor ledger and balance sheet for July 2019  

Discussion/Possible 
Action 

ITEM #3: 
 

STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
Written staff reports by the Town Manager/Clerk, Deputy Town Clerk, Utilities Clerk, Accounting 
Clerk, Public Works Department, Building Inspector, Library, Municipal Court, Police Chief, and 
Fire Chief, and verbal reports from Council members.  Discussion/Possible 

Action 

ITEM #4: PLANNING AND ZONING AND DESIGN REVIEW REPORT AND MINUTES 
Minutes are provided for the information of Council and do not require action.  Discussion/Possible 

Direction 

ITEM #5: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
July 2 special meeting; July 9 regular meeting; July 25 special meeting; July 30 special meeting I; 
July 30 special meeting II Discussion/Possible 

Action 

ITEM #6: PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.01(H), public comment is permitted on matters not listed on the agenda but the subject 
matter must be within the jurisdiction of the Council. All comments are subject to reasonable time, place and manner 
restrictions. All petitioners must fill out a request form with their name and subject matter. When recognized by the chair, 
please step to the podium, state your name and please observe the three (3) minute time limit. No petitioners will be 
recognized with8ut a request. The Council’s response to public comments is limited to asking staff to review a matter 
commented upon, asking that a matter be put on a future agenda, or responding to criticism. Discussion/Possible 

Direction 

ITEM #7 PRESENTATIONS  

 ITEM #7A:  FRIENDS OF THE VERDE RIVER 
Laura Jones will make a presentation regarding Friends of the Verde River. 

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion only. 

 ITEM #7B:  SCHOOL CONSOLIDATION 
Mike Westcott, Superintendent of Mingus Union High School, and Danny Brown, Superintendent 
of the Clarkdale-Jerome Elementary School, will speak about the impacts of school 
consolidation. 

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion only. 

ITEM #8: ORDINANCES  

 ITEM #8A:  SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE ADOPTION: ORDINANCE NO. 453, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JEROME, YAVAPAI COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING SECTION 301, “AMENDMENTS OR ZONE CHANGES,” OF THE 
JEROME ZONING ORDINANCE 
Council may conduct the second reading of, and may adopt, Ordinance 453, amending the 
Zoning Ordinance to provide that a majority, rather than a super-majority, of Council may 
override the recommendations of the Planning & Zoning Commission. The Planning & Zoning 
Commission held a public hearing on this Ordinance on June 5, 2019 and recommended that 
Council approve this change. 

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 



   Regular Meeting of August 13, 2019 
 

 

 ITEM #8B:  SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE ADOPTION: ORDINANCE NO. 454, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JEROME, YAVAPAI COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING SECTION 201, “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 506, “R-2 ZONE, MULTIPLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL,” AND SECTION 507, “C-1 ZONE, GENERAL COMMERCIAL” OF THE 
JEROME ZONING ORDINANCE 
Council may conduct the second reading of, and may adopt, Ordinance No. 454, which would 
amend the Jerome Zoning Ordinance to limit permitted uses in the R-2 Zone to single- and two-
family residential use, and change the conditional uses in the R-2 zone to be identical to those in 
the R1-5 zone. It would also amend the C-1 zone to include “Three-Family,” “Multi-Family,” 
“Apartment Houses,” “Hospitals,” “Nursing Homes and Convalescent Homes” and “Boarding or 
Rooming Houses” as conditional uses. The Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing 
on this Ordinance on June 5, 2019 and recommended that Council approve this change. 

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

 ITEM #8C: FIRST READING – ORDINANCE NO. 455, AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN 
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JEROME, YAVAPAI COUNTY, ARIZONA, RESCINDING 
ORDINANCE 321, ADOPTED DECEMBER 9, 2003, REGARDING FEES, FINES AND OTHER 
CHARGES FOR THE JEROME PUBLIC LIBRARY 
Council may conduct the first reading of Ordinance 455, which would rescind Ordinance 321, 
adopted on December 9, 2003, and which established fees, fines and other charges for the 
Jerome Public Library. Ordinance 455, once adopted, would eliminate those fees, fines and 
charges.  

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

ITEM #9: UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 ITEM #9A: RESOLUTION NO. 584, A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA, LEVYING UPON THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN A CERTAIN SUM OF MONEY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 TO 
BE ASSESSED AGAINST THE VALUATION OF REAL PROPERTY FOR PRIMARY TAX PURPOSES 
Council may approve Resolution #584, adopting the municipal tax levy for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2020. A public hearing on the budget and tax levy was held on July 30, 2019. No 
increase in the tax levy is proposed. 

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

 ITEM #9B:  BUYBACK OF SLIDING JAIL PROPERTY 
Council may authorize the buyback of Yavapai County Parcels #401-06-138, 401-06-076B and 
401-06-140A from the Jerome Historical Society in accordance with the Development Agreement 
previously entered into between the parties.   

Sponsored by Vice 
Mayor Sage Harvey 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

ITEM #10: NEW BUSINESS  

 ITEM #10A: JEROME FILM FESTIVAL 
Toni Ross and Jason Ryan will present their requests for use of Town property (Fire Station and 
Lower Park) as venues for the upcoming Jerome Indie Film Festival, and for permission to hang a 
banner across from the Spirit Room.  

Sponsored by 
Councilmember 
Jack Dillenberg 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

ITEM #11: EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 ITEM #11A: EXECUTIVE SESSION – WATER ISSUES 
Upon a public majority vote of the members constituting a quorum, the Council may hold an 
executive session with outside water counsel via telephone with regard to pending litigation in 
the Gila River Adjudication, legal issues regarding the Town’s water supply and the Town’s water 
rates, which is not open to the public pursuant to: A.R.S. § 38-43 l.03(A)(3); A.R.S. §38 -
431.03(A)(4); and/or A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(7). 

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

 ITEM #11B: WATER/WASTEWATER RATE ANALYSIS 
Following the executive session, Council may return to open session and may consider and act 
to approve a letter agreement with Willdan Financial Services to provide a water/wastewater 
rate analysis.  

Sponsored by 
Mayor Alex Barber 
Discussion; Possible 
Action 

ITEM #12: TO AND FROM THE COUNCIL 
Council may direct staff as to items of pending importance that they would like placed on a 
future meeting agenda. 

Discussion; Possible 
Direction 

ITEM #13: ADJOURNMENT  

 
The Town Council may recess the public meeting and convene in Executive Session for the purpose of discussion or consultation for legal advice with the Town Attorney, who may participate telephonically, 
regarding any item listed on this agenda pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3). The Chair reserves the right, with the consent of Council, to take items on the agenda out of order. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that this notice and agenda was posted at the following locations on or before _____ p.m. on _____________________, in accordance with the statement filed by the Jerome Town 
Council with the Jerome Town Clerk. 
 

970 Gulch Road, side of Gulch Fire Station, exterior posting case 
600 Clark Street, Jerome Town Hall, exterior posting case 
120 Main Street, Jerome Post office, interior posting case  

 
_________________________________ 
Joni Savage, Deputy Town Clerk 





































































































































































































 

 

August 8 2019 

Ms. Candace Gallagher 
Town of Jerome 
600 Clark Street 
Jerome AZ 86331 

 

Re: Letter Agreement to Provide Water/Wastewater Rate Analysis 

Dear Ms. Gallagher: 

Willdan Financial Services (“Willdan”) is pleased to present the following scope of services and budget to 
assist the Town of Jerome in providing an update of our water and wastewater long-term financial plan and 
rate recommendations.  We are an economic and financial consulting firm, with offices in Plano, Texas and 
throughout the United States. Our principal clients are national, state and local governments. Our firm contains 
professionals with decades of experience in water and wastewater utility operations and economic/financial 
management. 

 

Scope of Services 
We want to ensure that our scope of services is responsive to the Town’s needs. We will work with the Town 
to tailor our proposed scope based on input prior to approval of this letter agreement, and as needed during 
the course of the project.  

 

Task 1:   Rate Comparison 

Description: We will provide a detailed analysis and comparison of the Town’s current and proposed rates 
to the state average as well as to other surrounding communities.  

 

Task 2:  Acquire and Analyze Data for Analysis 

Description: The project team will work with Town staff to acquire the data required for the study.  This will 
include customer and volume data, budgets, operating expenses, capital improvement plans 
and debt service schedules.  We will thoroughly analyze all acquired data to ensure that it 
meets the requirements for our study and will follow up with Town staff as necessary. 

 



Ms. Candace Gallagher, Town of Jerome 
Letter Agreement to Provide Water/Wastewater Rate Update 
August 8 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Task 3:  Update Rate Model 

Description: The project team will use acquired current budget, volume and CIP data to prepare a  ten-
year water and wastewater cost of service forecast model.  The model will identify current 
and forecast operating expenses, capital outlays and debt service for the period FY 2010 – 
FY 2028.  The model adheres to AWWA ratemaking standards to ensure that the cost of 
service for each customer class is just, reasonable and accurate.  The project team will also 
install a dashboard onto the model for ease of use by the project team and the client.  

 

Task 4:   Prepare Alternative Rate Plans and PowerPoint Summary 

Description: Based on the findings and results from prior tasks, the project team will prepare several 
alternative water and wastewater proposed rate structures for the Town Council to consider.  
Importantly, this will include the development of a volume-based rate.  Each alternative will 
enable the Town to recover sufficient revenues to fund operating and capital costs.  The 
project team will prepare additional scenarios should the staff or council so choose in 
determining which is the most just and reasonable. The Town will summarize its findings into 
a PowerPoint presentation. 

 
Task 5:   Meetings 

Description: The project team will conduct the following meetings: 

a) One meeting with Town staff to review preliminary results 

b) One workshop with the Town Council to discuss our findings and 
recommendations 

c) One final Council meeting at which the preferred rate plan is to be decided upon 
by the Council.  

 
 

Budget 
Willdan will perform the tasks described in the Scope of Services section for the lump sum fee of $12,000.  

Note:  

▪ Telephone conference calls are not considered meetings and are not limited by our proposal. 

▪ Additional services, including attending additional meetings, may be authorized by the Town and will 
require an additional fee.  

▪ We will bill the Town monthly based on percent of the task completion. 

 
 
Additional Services 
Additional services may be authorized by the Town and will be billed at our then-current hourly overhead 
consulting rates. Our current hourly rates are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ms. Candace Gallagher, Town of Jerome 
Letter Agreement to Provide Water/Wastewater Rate Update 
August 8 2019 
Page 3 

 

 

 

Willdan Financial Services 

Hourly Rate Schedule 

Group Manager $250 

Managing Principal $240 

Principal Consultant $210 

Senior Project Manager $185 

Project Manager $165 

Senior Project Analyst $135 

Senior Analyst $125 

Analyst $110 

Analyst Assistant $100 

 

Authorization  
If the terms of this engagement are acceptable, please sign where indicated and email this letter back to our 
contracts supervisor: 
 

 Ms. Joanie Reynolds  
 Willdan Financial Services 
 27368 Via Industria, Suite 200 
 Temecula, California  92590 
 Ph. (800) 755-6864; fax (951) 587-3510 
 E-mail: jreynolds@willdan.com 

We appreciate this opportunity to serve the Town of Jerome.  If you have any questions regarding the 
proposed services, please contact me directly at (972) 378-6588 or via email at djackson@willdan.com. 

Sincerely, 

Willdan Financial Services 

                August 8 2019                   
Dan V. Jackson, Vice President        Date 

Town of Jerome 

                       
 Signature          Date 

            
 Print Name 

mailto:jreynolds@willdan.com
mailto:jreynolds@willdan.com
mailto:djackson@willdan.com
mailto:djackson@willdan.com


 

Willdan Financial Services Page A-1 Town of Jerome 

ATTACHMENT 1 TO LETTER AGREEMENT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The Letter Agreement between the Town of Jerome (“Client”) and Willdan Financial Services (“WFS”) is subject 
to these Terms and Conditions (collectively, this “Agreement”). 

1. Additional Services.  Additional services shall be performed by WFS only upon Client’s request evidenced 
by a written addendum executed by both parties. 

2. Compensation.  WFS shall submit monthly statements for services.  Payments shall be due and payable 
within 30 days of invoice and if not timely paid shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month. 

3. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon 30 days’ written notice.  In the 
event of early termination, WFS shall be paid for services performed prior to the effective date of termination. 

4. Data Provided by Client.  WFS shall rely upon data provided by Client without independent verification of 
accuracy.  WFS shall not be responsible for any errors resulting from its use of inaccurate data provided by 
Client. 

5. Indemnification.  Each Party shall indemnify the other from claims resulting from their respective negligence 
or other wrongful conduct or the negligence or other wrongful conduct of their respective officers, agents or 
employees. 

6. Insurance.  WFS shall maintain the following insurance: 

a. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance as prescribed by applicable law. 

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance, with limits not be less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
general aggregate. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.   

d. Professional Liability with limits not be less than $1,000,000 per claim and annual aggregate. 

e. All policies except Professional Liability and Workers Compensation shall include Client as an 
additional insured and be primary with respect to any insurance carried by WFS.  All policies shall include a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of Client. 

f. WFS shall provide Client with certificates of insurance evidencing compliance with the above insurance 
requirements prior to commencing it services.   

7. Miscellaneous.   

 a. Titles used in this Agreement are for general reference and are not a part of the Agreement. 

 b. This Agreement shall be interpreted as though prepared by both parties. 

 c. Any provision of this Agreement held to violate any law shall be deemed void, and all remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

 d. This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of California. 

 e. This Agreement comprises a final and complete repository of the understandings between the parties 
and supersedes all prior or contemporary communications, representations or agreements, whether oral or 
written, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 f. Any notices given pursuant to this agreement shall be effective on the third business day after posting 
by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the address appearing immediately after the signatures below. 

 g. WFS shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental agencies 
including, but not limited to, permit processing or environmental impact reports. 

 h. WFS’s waiver of any term, condition, or covenant, or breach of any term, condition, or covenant, shall 
not constitute the waiver of any subsequent breach of any other term, condition or covenant. 

 i. WFS shall not responsible for the performance of services by third parties not retained by WFS.  



Education 

Master of Business 
Administration, 

University of Chicago, 
1984;              

Specialization in 
Finance/Accounting  

Bachelor of Arts, 
University of Chicago, 
1982; Major in Social 

Sciences                    
Dean’s Honor List 

Areas of Expertise 

Rate Design 

Cost of Service 

Financial Forecasting 

Strategic Planning 

Utility/Company 
Valuation 

Acquisition Analysis 

Privatization Analysis 

Economic Impact and 
Development 

Expert Witness Testimony 

 

Affiliations 

Member, American 
Water Works Association 

National Association for 
Business Economics 

Commissioner, 
Community Development 

Commission, City of 
Dallas, Texas, 1993-1995 

Other 

The Forgotten Men – 
Fiction – Mediaguruz 

Publishing; Amazon.com 

 
 

30 Years Experience 

Dan V. Jackson. M.B.A. 

Vice President and Principal in Charge 
 
Mr. Jackson has 35 years’ experience as an international financial expert, having completed more 
than 300 water, wastewater, electric, gas, solid waste and stormwater rate/cost of service studies 
and long-term financial plans for clients in the USA and the Pacific region. He also has served as an 
expert witness in state court, federal court and before several public utility commissions.  Mr. 
Jackson’s prior experience includes positions with Deloitte and Touche, Arthur Andersen and Reed-
Stowe and Company.  In 1997, Mr. Jackson co-founded Economists.com LLC, which became an 
international consulting firm with offices in Dallas and Portland, Oregon.  Willdan acquired 
Economists.com in 2015, and Mr. Jackson now serves as Vice President and Managing Principal.  
Mr. Jackson has given dozens of lectures and presentations before professional associations, and 
is also a published author; his novel The Forgotten Men is available on Amazon.com. 

His experience is summarized below.  

 

Water/Wastewater – Rate Studies and Long Term Financial Plans for which Mr. Jackson served 
as Project Manager 

▪ Bisbee, AZ      2000 – 2005, 2018 
▪ Buckeye, AZ     2013, 2015, 2016 
▪ Camp Verde Sanitary District, AZ    2006, 2008 
▪ Carefree, AZ     2018, 2019 
▪ Casa Grande, AZ      2009 
▪ Chino Valley, AZ       2010-2018 
▪ Chloride Domestic Water Imp District, AZ  2003 
▪ Clarkdale, AZ      2005 
▪ Clifton, AZ     2018 
▪ Cottonwood, AZ       2004, 2007, 2009 
▪ Douglas, AZ       2009, 2011 
▪ Eagar, AZ      2006, 2011, 2012 
▪ Eloy, AZ       2007, 2011-2013 
▪ Florence, AZ     2008, 2012 
▪ Flowing Wells Improvement District, AZ    2008 
▪ Goodyear, AZ     2014, 2015,2019 
▪ Holbrook, AZ       2004 
▪ Marana, AZ      2008 – 2013, 2016 
▪ Miami, AZ      2010 – 2012, 2015 
▪ Nogales, AZ      2011, 2015-2016, 2018 
▪ Patagonia, AZ       1999, 2002  
▪ Payson, AZ      2006, 2010, 2012, 2013, 2014 
▪ Prescott, AZ      2008 
▪ Quartzsite, AZ      2004, 2009, 2011, 2012, 2018 
▪ Queen Creek, AZ      2004, 2007, 2015, 2016 
▪ Safford, AZ       2006 
▪ San Luis, AZ      2002, 2012, 2013, 2017, 2018 
▪ Show Low, AZ      2011, 2014 
▪ Somerton, AZ      1999, 2002, 2005-2010,2018 
▪ Tombstone, AZ      2001 
▪ Tonto Village DWID, AZ    2018 
▪ Wellton, AZ      2003 



▪ Willcox, AZ      2002 
▪ Winslow, AZ     2016, 2018,2019 
▪ Yuma, AZ      2007, 2014, 2015, 2018 
▪ Allen, TX      2007, 2009, 2012 
▪ Balch Springs, TX     2017 
▪ Cedar Hill, TX     2016, 2018 
▪ Celina, TX     2014, 2018,2019 
▪ Coppell, TX     2017 
▪ Denton County FWSD 1A, TX   2017 
▪ Denton County FWSD 8C, TX   2018 
▪ DeSoto, TX      2005 -- 2019 
▪ Duncanville, TX      2002, 2003, 2007, 2013, 2014, 2018 
▪ Fairview, TX     2016, 2018 
▪ Frisco, TX     2017 
▪ Garland, TX     2009 –2012 
▪ Grand Prairie, TX     2019 
▪ Hackberry, TX      2006 
▪ Hutchins, TX     2017,2019 
▪ Kaufman, TX     1994 
▪ League City, TX     2019  
▪ Little Elm, TX      2001, 2004,2008-2016 
▪ McKinney, TX     2016, 2010, 2019 
▪ Mesquite, TX     2018 
▪ Midlothian, TX      2000, 2003, 2006, 2010, 2011, 2016 
▪ Oak Point, TX      2006, 2011 
▪ Parker, TX     2016 
▪ Plano, TX     2017 
▪ Princeton, TX     2012 
▪ Prosper, TX      2005, 2016, 2018 
▪ Richardson, TX     2016 
▪ Rowlett, TX     2009, 2017, 2019 
▪ Royse City, TX     2007, 2011,2018 
▪ Rockwall,TX     2018 
▪ Sachse, TX     2014 
▪ Venus, TX     2005, 2012 
▪ Waxahachie, TX      2012 
▪ Alamo Heights, TX    2018 
▪ Amarillo, TX     2017 
▪ Aqua Water Supply Corporation, TX  2003 
▪ Brady, TX     2016 
▪ Castroville, TX     2016,2018 
▪ Cibolo Creek Municipal Authority   2012, 2015 
▪ Donna, TX      2007, 2011, 2012, 2013,2015, 2016 
▪ El Paso County WCID #4, TX   2005, 2007, 2010, 2011, 2015 
▪ El Paso County Tornillo WCID, TX   2006, 2010 
▪ Groesbeck, TX     2001, 2004 
▪ Harker Heights, TX     2006 
▪ Hewitt, TX      2009 – 2015 
▪ Hondo, TX     2019 
▪ Jonah Special Utility District, TX    2006 
▪ Kempner WSC, TX    2014-2015 
▪ Laredo, TX     2018,2019 
▪ Laguna Madre Water District, TX   1991, 1994, 1999, 2005, 2014, 2018 



▪ La Villa, TX     2007 
▪ Leander, TX     2017-2018 
▪ Liberty Hill, TX     2018,2019 
▪ Los Fresnos, TX      2007 
▪ Mercedes, TX     2001, 2003 
▪ North Fort Bend Water Authority, TX  2011, 2016 
▪ Paris, TX      1995 
▪ Port of Houston Authority, TX   2001 
▪ Raymondville, TX     2001 
▪ Robinson, TX     2012, 2014, 2015 
▪ Robstown, TX      2014, 2015 
▪ San Juan, TX     2019 
▪ Schertz, TX     2012 – 2018 
▪ Seguin, TX     2015 -- 2019 
▪ Selma, TX     2018 
▪ Schertz-Seguin Local Govt Corporation, TX   2010 – 2019 
▪ Sonora, TX     2012 
▪ Southmost Regional Water Authority, TX   2001 
▪ Tomball, TX     2018 
▪ Troup, TX     2006 
▪ Venus, TX      2005, 2012 
▪ West Harris County Regional Water Auth, TX 2003, 2006, 2010, 2011 
▪ Webb County, TX      2011 
▪ Whitehouse, TX      2008 
▪ Winona, TX      2009 
▪ Yancey Water Supply Corporation, TX  2005 
▪ North Chicago, IL     2001,2005 
▪ Ada, OK      2014, 2015,2018 
▪ Chickasha, OK     2016 
▪ Edmond, OK     2010, 2015,2017-2019 
▪ Miami, OK     2009, 2014,2017 
▪ Pryor, OK     2016 
▪ Hot Springs, AR     2005, 2009-2019 
▪ North Little Rock Wastewater Utility, AR  1999, 2003, 2006, 2011-2015 
▪ Russellville, AR     2013,2014,2015 
▪ Sarpy County, NE     2018 
▪ South Adams County WSD, CO   2013 
 

Water, Wastewater, Gas, Electric  – Pacific Region Experience 
▪ Commonwealth Utilities Corporation, Saipan 2005-2018 
▪ American Samoa Power Authority    2009, 2014, 2017 
▪ Electric Power Corp, Samoa   2013 
▪ Water Authority of Fiji    2016, 2017,2019 
▪ Palau Public Utilities Corporation   2008, 2018 
▪ Guam Power Authority    2011 
▪ Republic of Kiribati PUB    2019 

 

Solid Waste and Stormwater – Rate Studies and Long Term Financial Plans 
▪ Duncanville, TX     2007 



D. Jackson 

Resume Continued 

▪ Coppell,TX     2019 
▪ Hewitt, TX      2010 
▪ Mercedes, TX     1999 
▪ San Luis, AZ     2003, 2013 
▪ Somerton, AZ     2006 
▪ San Marcos, TX     2018 
▪ Hot Springs, AR     2011, 2012, 2013, 2016 
▪ Miami, OK     2009 
 
 
Water/Wastewater –CCN/ System Valuations and Acquisitions 

▪ Avondale, AZ       2006 
▪ Buckeye, AZ     2013-2015 
▪ Casa Grande, AZ (private)    2015 
▪ Chino Valley, AZ     2006, 2016,2018 
▪ Cottonwood, AZ     2009, 2012 
▪ Clarksdale, AZ     2009 
▪ Florence, AZ     2007, 2014 
▪ Marana, AZ     2009, 2010 
▪ Pine Strawberry Water Imp District, AZ  2009 
▪ Prescott, AZ     2006 
▪ Prescott Valley, AZ    1998 
▪ Queen Creek, AZ     2008, 2011 
▪ Show Low, AZ     2010, 2011 
▪ Aubrey, TX      2015 
▪ Arlington, TX     1999, 2001 
▪ Celina, TX      2006, 2015 
▪ Forney Lake WSC, TX    2016 
▪ Gunter, TX     2006 
▪ Kempner WSC, TX    2016 
▪ Taylor, TX     1999 
▪ Whitehouse, TX     2006 
▪ Van Alstyne, TX     2019 
▪ Rockwall, TX     2005 
▪ Trinity Water Reserve, TX    2000 
▪ North Chicago, IL      2001 
▪ North Little Rock WWU, AR   2015 
 

Water/Wastewater – Impact Fee Studies 

▪ East Medina County Special Utility District, TX 2000 
▪ Cibolo Creek Municipal Authority, TX  2015 
▪ Harlingen, TX     2005 
▪ Laguna Madre Water District, TX   1993, 1996, 2000, 2003 
▪ Los Fresnos, TX     2006 
▪ Mesquite, TX     1996 
▪ San Luis, AZ     2002 
▪ Marana, AZ     2011- 2014 
▪ Wellton, AZ     2003 
▪ Prescott, AZ     2007 
▪ Yuma, AZ     2004, 2007, 2016 
▪ Hot Springs, AR     2005, 2009, 2016 



D. Jackson 

Resume Continued 

D. Jackson 

Resume Continued 

Water/Wastewater – Other Studies 

City of Paris, TX ‒ Campbell’s Soup Co. wholesale contract review/negotiations. 

City of Conroe, TX – Evaluation of proposed long-term wholesale contract. 

Cities of Bellmead, Woodway and Hewitt, TX – Least cost alternative analysis and assistance with 
wholesale contract negotiations with City of Waco. 

City of Lubbock, TX – Analysis of reasonableness of rates for Franklin Water System, January 2002.  

City of Rockwall, TX – Wholesale contract review, 2005. 

City of Miami, OK – Non-rate revenue study, 2010. 

Town of Payson, AZ – Financial feasibility and economic impact study of C.C. Cragin Reservoir, 
2011. 

City of Duncanville, TX – Water and wastewater cost allocation study, 2002. 

City of Whitehouse, TX ‒ Economic analysis of potential acquisition of a water supply corporation, 
2006. 

City of Midlothian, TX – Drought management plans, 2001. 

City of Midlothian, TX – Assistance with wholesale contract negotiations, 2000-2001. 

City of Arlington, TX – Cost of service study for non water/sewer revenues, 1997. 

City of Arlington, TX – Lease vs. purchase analysis of city fixed assets, 1998. 

City of Donna, TX – Water and wastewater affordability analysis, 2005.  

Southmost Regional Water Authority – Economic and financial impact of proposed desalination 
treatment plant, 2001. 

Texas Water Development Board Region M – Financial feasibility analysis of water resource 
alternatives, 2006. 

Laguna Madre Water District ‒ Lost/unaccounted for water study, 1992. 

Schertz Seguin Local Government Corporation – Assistance in contract negotiations with SAWS, 
2010. 

California-American Water Company – Reasonableness of rate structure for City of Thousand 
Oaks, 2003.  

California-American Water Company – Reasonableness of rate structure for City of Felton, 2004.  

Forsyth County, GA – Business plan with extensive recommendations for managing 
unprecedented growth in volume and customer connections. Ten-year projection of operating 
income, 1998. 

City of Lakeland, FL – Valuation of wastewater reuse alternatives over 20-year timeframe. 

Border Environment Cooperation Commission and City of Bisbee, AZ – Wastewater system 
improvements plan, 2003. 

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona – Evaluation of 40-year wastewater 
construction financing plan for Lake Havasu City, 2002.  

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona – Comprehensive residential water and 
wastewater rate survey for the state of Arizona, 2004-2008. 

City of Plano, TX – evaluation of long-term contract with North Texas Municipal Water District, 
2015-2016. 

 

Expert Witness Testimony 

City of Arlington, TX ‒ Seven separate cost of service analyses and testimony in wholesale contract 



rate proceedings before TNRCC. Largest ongoing wastewater rate dispute in Texas history, 1990-
1994.  

Cameron County Fresh Water Supply District No. 1 vs. Town of South Padre Island (TNRCC Docket 
30346-W) ‒ Expert testimony on reasonableness of rate structure, 1992. 

Cameron County Fresh Water Supply District No. 1 vs. Sheraton Hotel/Outdoor Resorts (TNRCC 
Docket 95-0432-UCR) ‒ Expert testimony on reasonableness of rate structure, 1993. 

City of Celina, TX (SOAH Docket 2003-0762-DIS) – Expert testimony on the proposed creation of a 
Municipal Utility District, 2004. 

East Medina County Special Utility District (SOAH Docket 582-02-1255) – Expert testimony on CCN 
application, 2003. 

East Medina County Special Utility District (SOAH Docket 582-04-1012) – Expert testimony on CCN 
application, 2004. 

City of Karnes City, TX – Expert testimony on valuation of CCN before the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality, 2009. 

City of Princeton, TX (SOAH Docket 582-06-1641 and TCEQ Docket 2006-0044-UCR) – Expert 
testimony on ability to serve proposed service territory, 2007. 

Town of Little Elm, TX (SOAH Docket 582-01-1618) – Expert testimony on reasonableness of rate 
structure, 2001. 

Schertz Seguin Local Government Corporation – Expert testimony addressing application of San 
Antonio Water System for groundwater permits for Gonzalez County UWCD, 2009. 

City of Ruidoso, NM – Expert testimony on reasonableness of Wastewater Rates, 2010. 

City of Hot Springs, AR – Expert witness testimony on Reasonableness of Solid Waste Rates, 2010. 

Dallas County Water Control and Improvement District No. 6 (TNRCC Docket 95-0295-MWD) ‒ 
Hearing on the merits for proposed wastewater treatment plant permit, 1995. 

Commonwealth Utilities Corporation Saipan -- Expert testimony before Commonwealth Public 
Utilities Commission on reasonableness of rate structure, 2010-2015. 

City of Mesquite, Texas vs. Southwestern Bell Telephone Company (No. 3-89-0115-T, U.S. 
Federal Court Northern Texas) -- 18 year estimate of revenues excluded from municipal franchise 
fees by SWB.  Expert testimony on SWB accounting and franchise policies and Discovery disputes, 
1991-1995. 

City of Port Arthur, et. al., vs. Southwestern Bell Telephone Company (No. D-142,176, 136th 
Judicial District Court of Beaumont, Texas) -- 20 year estimate of revenues excluded from 
municipal franchise fees by SWB.  Expert testimony on SWB accounting and franchise policies.  
Case settled on first day of trial for approximately $30 million, 1993-1995.                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Southwestern Bell Telephone Company vs. City of Arlington, Texas (No. 3:98-CV-0844-X, U.S. 
Federal Court Northern Texas) -- 15 year estimate of access revenues excluded from municipal 
franchise fees by SWB.  Expert testimony on SWB accounting and franchise policies, 1996. 

Metro-Link Telecom vs. Southwestern Bell Telephone Company (No. 89-CV-0240, 56th Judicial 
District Court Galveston County Texas) -- 20 year pro forma model calculating lost revenue from 
the cancellation of a trunk line leasing contract.  The model formed the basis of a $5.7 million 
judgment against SWB, 1994 

Complaint of the City of Denton against GTE Southwest, Inc.  (PUC Docket 14152), 1994. 

GTE vs. City of Denton (No. 95-50259-367, 367th Judicial District Court of Denton County, Texas) 
-- 10 year estimate of revenues excluded from municipal franchise fees by GTE, 1994-1996.  

MAS vs. City of Denton, Texas (No. 99-50263-367, Judicial District Court of Denton County, Texas) 
– Testimony on reasonableness of franchise fee payment calculations. 



D. Jackson 

Resume Continued 

 

Regulated Utilities – USA  

City of Miami, OK ‒ Electric, water and wastewater and electric rate study, 2006.  

Bonneville Power Administration ---Participation in Average System Cost (ASC) program, including 
proposed changes in ASC methodology, 1988-1990.    

Houston Lighting & Power -- Feasibility/Prudence analysis of South Texas Nuclear Project vs. 
alternate forms of energy.  Analysis formed the basis of partner’s expert testimony before the 
Public Utility Commission of Texas, 1988. 

Kansas Power & Light – Analysis of proposed merger with two separate companies, 1988.    

Greenville Electric Utility System- Development of short-term cash investment policy in 
accordance with state law, 1989. 

Horizon Communications– Business plan development, 2000.  

City of Mercedes, TX – Economic Impact of New City Projects, 2000. 

 

Telecommunications   

City of Dallas, TX ‒ Forecast of economic and financial construction and non-construction damages 
resulting from franchise’s failure to fulfill terms of agreement, 2004  

City of Dallas, TX ---Financial evaluation and forecast of alternative wireless services contracts, 
2005.  

City of Dallas, TX --Evaluation and advice concerning VOIP contract with SBC, 2003   

Voice Web Corporation-- Economic/financial forecast and strategic plan for CLEC development, 
2001  

United Telephone of Ohio -- Pro forma forecast model forecasting the impact on financial 
statements of proposed changes in state telecommunications regulatory structures.  Model was 
used as the basis for privatization bids for Argentine and Puerto Rican Telephone Companies, 1988.  

Bonneville Power Administration – Evaluation and financial forecast of long-term fiber optic 
leasing operation, 1999. 

Bonneville Power Administration – Economics of Fiber Analysis, 1999.  

City of Portland, Oregon –Municipal Franchise Fee Review, 2000. 

US West, Inc. – Valuation study and financial forecast of headquarters operation.  Used as basis 
for Partner’s allocated cost testimony before the Public Utility Commission in Washington and 
Utah. 

Virgin Islands Telephone Company -- Business Interruption study assessing impact of Hurricane 
Hugo on company operations, outside plant, and total revenue.  Included valuation and 10 year 
financial forecast of revenues and expenses, 1990.  

Star-Tel -- Estimate of revenues lost due to rival’s unfair business practices, 1995.  

Cities of Denton and Carrollton, Texas -- Review of municipal franchise fee payments by GTE, 
1994-1996.   

Winstar Gateway Network -- forecast of average lifespan per ANI for specific customer classes.  

Advisory Commission on State Emergency Communications -- Review of E911 Equalization 
Surcharge Payments by AT&T, ATC Satelco, and Lake Dallas Telephone Company. 

Northern Telecom -- Projection of potential revenue generated from the long-term lease of DMS-
100 switching units to Pacific Bell. 

 



D. Jackson 

Resume Continued 

Publications/Presentations/Seminars 
 
▪ The Forgotten Men (fiction) – Mediaguruz Publishing, 2012. 
▪ Raising Water and Wastewater Rates – How to Maximize Revenues and Minimize Headaches 

– Arizona Small Utilities Association, August 2002;  Texas Section AWWA, April 2003 
Wholesale Providers and the Duty to Serve:  A Case Study – Water Environment Federation, 
September 1996. 

▪ Lease vs. Purchase – A Guideline for the Public Sector – Texas Town and City, March 1998•. 
▪ An Introduction to Lease vs. Purchase – Texas City Managers Association – May 1998.  
▪ Technische Universiteit Delft – Delft Netherlands -- Annual Infrastructure Conference – May 

2000, 2001. 
▪ The US Water Industry – A Study in the Limits of Privatization -- Technische Universiteit Delft 

– Delft Netherlands – March 2007. 
▪ The New Information Economy: Opportunity or Threat to the Rio Grande Valley? –  Rio Grande 

Valley Economic Summit -- Oct 2000. 
▪ The Financial Benefits of Regionalization – A Case Study – Texas Water Development 

Symposium – September 2010.  
▪ Developing Conservation Water Rates Without Sacrificing Revenue – TWCA Conference, San 

Antonio Texas, October 2012. 
▪ Water Rates – Challenges for Pacific Utilities – Pacific Water and Wastes Conference, American 

Samoa, September 2014.  




